# **Revolving Investment Fund Committee**

# Wednesday, 11 November 2015

Attendees: Councillor Tim Young (Member), Councillor Annie Feltham (Member),

Councillor Mark Cory (Chairman), Councillor Bill Frame (Deputy

Chairman)

**Substitutes:** No substitutes were recorded at the meeting

Also in attendance: Councillor Jarvis

# Publication and call in arrangements

Date Published 12 November 2015 Date when decisions may be implemented (unless 'called in') 5pm 19 November 2015 All decisions except urgent decisions and those recommended to Council may be subject to the Call-in Procedure. Requests for the scrutiny of relevant decisions by the Scrutiny Panel must be signed by at least ONE Councillor AND FOUR other Councillors to countersign the call-in form OR to indicate support by e-mail. All such requests must be delivered to the Proper Officer by no later than 5pm on Thursday 19 November 2015.

# 21 Minutes

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting on 16 September 2015 be confirmed as a correct record.

# 22 Revolving Investment Fund - Financial Update

The Head of Commercial Services submitted a report a copy of which had been circulated to each Member.

Steve Heath, Finance Manager, presented the report and explained the sources of revenue income into the RIF. This is currently projected to increase to £954k per year by 2018/19. The anticipated additional income from business rates from RIF activities was not yet available, but it would have a positive impact on the amount that the Council retains. The RIF expenditure forecast was £16,759,000. This would be met through a mixture of capital programme allocations, capital receipts and revenue funding. The capital programme allocations had been reviewed and reallocated since the Committee had last reviewed the RIF. The shortfall from the capital programme would be met through capital receipts and revenue funding. In summary, over the period to the end of 2018/19, a small surplus of £780,000 was forecast. The proposed budgets for RIF projects in the capital programme, were set out in Appendix B.

#### RESOLVED that:-

- (a) The financial position in the Revolving Investment Fund be noted.
- (b) The proposed allocations of funding set out in summary at paragraph 4.13 of the Head of Commercial Services report be agreed.

#### REASONS

Cabinet agreed to create the RIF as a way to recycle capital receipts into profitable high income producing development schemes and regeneration / economic growth projects. This paper sets out the updated financial position of the RIF and proposes allocations of funding to specific projects.

## **ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS**

It would be possible to consider different allocations to projects. However, the proposals in this report represent a considered view of the cost to deliver a number of projects and income budget targets.

## 23 Sheepen Place Office Development Proposals Update Report

The Head of Commercial Services submitted a report a copy of which had been circulated to each Member.

Fiona Duhamel, Economic Growth Manager, presented the report and explained progress on the development since the proposal had been approved at the Committee meeting on November 2014. An agreement for the lease had been signed with Birkett Long and planning permission had been granted on 5 November 2015. The project remained on timescale and on budget. The next key milestone would be the issue of tenders in early December. Now planning permission had been granted for this phase of the project, work would begin on marketing and finding a tenant for the next phase.

Members of the Committee expressed their support for the development. It was encouraging for Colchester that a successful local business wanted to develop its business in Colchester. It was also a good example of the commercial approach to the use of the Council's assets which would generate an ongoing income stream. The green credentials of the building were emphasised, which was demonstrated by the fact that the building had been designed to reach the BREAM standard of Very Good.

- (a) Progress made against key milestones in the development programme be noted.
- (b) Progress against programmed capital budget spend be noted.

#### REASONS

To ensure the development programme progresses on time and on budget and meets the Council's overall objectives of delivering a high quality scheme with a revenue income to support service delivery.

#### **ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS**

No alternative options were proposed.

# 24 Colchester Northern Gateway (North) Development Proposal

The Head of Commercial Services submitted a report a copy of which had been circulated to each Member.

Fiona Duhamel, Economic Growth Manager, presented the report and highlighted the vision for the site which was based on the related themes of participation, elite performance and health activity. It was anticipated that the development would improve performance at elite level and would widen participation in sport more generally. Increased participation in sport would also bring health benefits.

The site was close to the park and ride site and its linkages with cycleways, footpaths and bridleways would be developed. It was anticipated that the site would include the relocation of Colchester Rugby Club, including a 3G pitch, a multi sports building and cycling facilities, including a velodrome or closed road circuit. The Council was working with national agencies such as Sports England and sporting associations, as well as local sports clubs, in developing the proposals.

Members of the Committee considered that the proposals fitted well the Strategic Plan priorities, particularly in relation to providing opportunities for health, wellbeing and enjoyment for all. It would also complement the more commercial leisure developments to the south of the A12. The scheme, in particular the cycling facilities, had great potential to attract large numbers of visitors to Colchester,

In response to queries from members it was confirmed that all of the existing activities at the rugby club would be relocated, either to this site or elsewhere. The exact nature and extent of the facilities to be provided for the club was still to be determined.

*RESOLVED* that progress made to date on the feasibility study for the development of the site be noted.

#### REASONS

To ensure the development of Northern Gateway as a key sports/leisure destination within the Borough and wider.

To ensure the initial business case is reviewed and agreed before progressing onto the more detailed work around the proposal.

#### ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

At this stage there are few alternative options as work is still at an early stage although the RIF could decide to re-visit the mix of uses and proposals for the site in the light of planning policy and market conditions.

## 25 16-09-15 not for publication extract

• This report is not for publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (financial / business affairs of a particular person, including the authority holding information).

# 26 Revolving Investment Fund - Financial Update (Part B)

The Committee resolved under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 and in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Meetings and Access to Information)(England) Regulations 2012 to exclude the public from the meeting for the following items as they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

RESOLVED that the appendices to the Head of Commercial Services report be noted.

# 27 Colchester Northern Gateway (North) Proposal Development Project - Business Case

The Committee resolved under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 and in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Meetings and Access to Information)(England) Regulations 2012 to exclude the public from the meeting for the following items as they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

The Head of Commercial Services submitted an initial business case for the Colchester Northern Gateway Sports Hub a copy of which had been circulated to each Member together with

RESOLVED that the initial business case for the proposed development be approved and that work be undertaken to progress a detailed business case to be presented to the RIF in January 2016.

REASONS

As set out in minute 24.

**ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS** 

As set out in minute 24.